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The City Council Questions and Answers Report was derived from a need to provide City Council Members an 
opportunity to solicit clarifying information from City Departments as it relates to requests for council action. After a 

City Council Regular Meeting agenda has been published, Council Members will have the opportunity to ask questions 
of departments via the City Manager’s Agenda Office. This process continues until 5:00 p.m. the Tuesday before the 
Council meeting. The final report is distributed at noon to City Council the Wednesday before the council meeting. 

 
 

QUESTIONS FROM COUNCIL 
 

1. Agenda Item # 2 - Authorize award and execution of a construction contract with 
RESTEK, INC. for the Ullrich Water Treatment Plant Concrete Rehabilitation 
Project in the amount of $424,195 plus $42,419 contingency, for a total contract 
amount not to exceed $466,614. 

 
a. QUESTION: What was the result of the Water Waste Water Commission 

meeting? COUNCIL MEMBER GALLO'S OFFICE 
 

b. ANSWER: On March 11, 2015, this item was unanimously approved by the 
Water and Wastewater Commission. 

 
2. Agenda Item # 3 - Authorize negotiation and execution of a professional services 

agreement with the following 15 staff recommended firms or (qualified 
responders) to Request for Qualifications Solicitation No. CLMP171: MWM 
DESIGN GROUP: HALFF ASSOCIATES, INC: MCGRAY & MCGRAY 
LAND SURVEYORS, INC: MACIAS & ASSOCIATES, LP: SURVEYING 
AND MAPPING, LLC: JACOBS ENGINEERING GROUP, INC:  
LANDMARK SURVEYING, LP: JONES & CARTER, INC. dba TERRA 
FIRMA LAND SURVEYING: MCKIM & CREEDINC.: LANDESIGN 
SERVICES, INC.: PAPE-DAWSON ENGINEERS, INC.: UNINTECH 
CONSULTING ENGINEERS INC.: COBB FENDLEY & ASSOCIATES, 
INC.: GORONDONA & ASSOCIATES, INC.: and HEJL, LEE & 
ASSOCIATES, INC. to provide surveying services for the 2015 surveying services 
rotation list for an estimated period of two years or until financial authorization is 
expended, for a total contract amount not to exceed $3,000,000 divided  amongst 
the 15 firms. 

 
a. QUESTION: 1) Are these professional services agreements time sensitive or 

can this item be sent to the Audit & Finance Committee for review? 2) If the 
City were to perform these professional services in-house how many FTEs 
would be required, how much would it cost and would the level and quality of 
service be equal, greater or less than if the services were performed by outside 
firms? 3) If the City were to perform these professional services in-house how 
many FTEs would be required, how much would it cost and would the level 
and quality of service be equal, greater or less than if the services were 



 

 

performed by outside firms? 4) How routine is the recurring work that 
requires these professional services? COUNCIL MEMBER GALLO'S 
OFFICE 

 
b. ANSWER: 1) The approval of this agreement is time sensitive as the current 

rotation list has only $225,671.06 remaining in authorization. Additionally, 
there is a $100,000 project  that is currently being processed which will further 
draw down the authority available to make assignments for surveying work.  A 
delay in award of the contract may impact the City’s ability to make progress 
on our ongoing capital projects as surveying work is often on the critical path 
of project completion.  2) Public Works currently maintains a small surveying 
team of only three surveying professionals and two surveying technicians.  
The issue, however, involves more than staffing.  Surveying technology has 
experienced rapid changes over the past several years.  While the City 
maintains some modern equipment to respond to small jobs and items of a 
time-sensitive nature, it is not practical for the City to purchase and maintain 
specialized equipment that requires unique calibration and maintenance.  
Consequently, the role of City surveyors is migrating from data collection to 
data quality and data management. Additionally, surveying requests come in 
lulls and waves. The rotation list allows the City to make assignments as needs 
arise rather than putting requests in queue for a staff crew. Surveying is often 
on the critical path for project completion, and projects benefit from getting 
the surveying work accomplished quickly. Conversely, when there are lulls the 
City does not have staff sitting idle. The cost of equipment and the uneven 
workload make the use of a rotation list a better value to the City for most 
surveying requirements.  Additionally, opportunities for small and 
minority/women owned firms are created with the use of a rotation list. 3) 
The current agreement has been used by the Parks and Recreation 
Department, Austin Water Utility, Austin Energy, Transportation, Aviation, 
Watershed, and the Public Works Department. It is available for use by all 
departments. The same departments are expected to continue to use the new 
agreement. 4) Though each capital improvement project is unique, the need 
for surveying is routine. 

 
3. Agenda Item # 4 - Authorize the use of the construction manager-at-risk method 

of contracting for construction of the new Parking Garage with Administration 
Offices Project at the Austin-Bergstrom International Airport. 

 
a. QUESTION: 1) What is the recommendation of the Audit & Finance Council 

Committee? 2) Is this construction manager-at-risk contract related to Zoning 
Cases C14-2014-0175A & B? 3) If this item is related to these two zoning case 
why is this item not being heard with the two zoning cases in April? 4) Has a 
firm or company already been selected as the finalist for this contract? 5) If so, 
when was the finalist approved? COUNCIL MEMBER GALLO'S OFFICE 

 
b. ANSWER: 1) Staff is presenting the item to the Audit and Finance Committee 

on March 25th. 2) No, the noted zoning cases are not related to our request to 
authorize the use of the construction manager-at-risk method. 3) The noted 



 

 

zoning cases are not related to the request to use the construction manager-at-
risk method.  4) No firm or company has been identified for these services.  
The action before Council is to authorize the use of the construction delivery 
method.  If Council approves the methodology, Contract Management 
Department and Aviation Staff will work to develop the solicitation 
documents and advertise the solicitation soon after.  This solicitation process 
will lead to City staff recommending a firm to Council for preconstruction 
phase services.  In addition, Contract Management Department and Aviation 
staff will also work on developing a separate solicitation for the architectural 
design services.  5) Not applicable. 

 
4. Agenda Item # 5 - Approve an ordinance amending City Code Title 9 relating to 

audible noises and music and solicitation. 
 

a. QUESTION: Does this resolution have the support of the surrounding 
neighborhood association? COUNCIL MEMBER GALLO'S OFFICE 

 
b. ANSWER: As drafted, the ordinance amendment does not have the support 

of the surrounding neighborhood association. For this and other reasons, the 
Economic Development Department requested the item be withdrawn. We 
will be working with the Legal Department to schedule an executive session at 
an upcoming City Council meeting. From that point, we would bring the item 
to a Council Committee before proposing further ordinance amendments. 

 
c. QUESTION: Can we get a “red line” version showing the original ordinance 

and the proposed changes? COUNCIL MEMBER ZIMMERMAN'S 
OFFICE 

 
d. ANSWER: The attached ordinance is the most recent version under 

discussion.  Please note that this is not a final draft.  Staff is requesting 
withdrawal of this item pending further Council consideration. 

 
5. Agenda Item # 7 - Approve an ordinance establishing classifications and positions 

in the classified service of the Austin Fire Department; creating and eliminating 
certain positions and repealing Ordinance No. 20140908-004 relating to the 
Austin Fire Department classifications and positions. 

 
a. QUESTION: 1) Why the variation from the recently passed resolution 

20140908-004? 2) Did this item go before the Public Safety Commission? If 
so, what was the vote? COUNCIL MEMBER GALLO'S OFFICE 

 
b. ANSWER: 1) When the budget was adopted in September 2014, AFD created 

a Division Chief position by upgrading a vacant Firefighter position. The 
classification ordinance was amended to reflect the change in rank of the one 
position. The current request for a  change to the ordinance would allow AFD 
to upgrade the rank of five vacant Firefighter positions to the next highest 
rank of Fire Specialist. It would also allow the creation of two Division Chiefs 
(DC). One DC comes from the upgrade of a Battalion Chief one rank below. 



 

 

The second DC comes from an upgrade of a vacant Firefighter position four 
ranks below. The purposed upgrades in rank will provide a) strategic oversight 
for the Wildfire and Community Outreach divisions, b) upper level 
management of Special Operations, Airport, and several other divisions, and 
c) the increased skill set associated with Fire Specialists who will work in 
Recruiting, Community Outreach and Medical Operations training and 
certification. 2) No, this did not go to the Public Safety Commission. The Fire 
Chief needs to retain the ability to manage operations issues associated with 
management span of control, enhancing supervision of programs, and placing 
employees with higher-level skill sets in key functions. 

 
6. Agenda Item # 10 - Authorize negotiation and execution of an 84-month lease 

renewal agreement with PAJA PROPERTIES, LTD. for 7,675 square feet of 
retail, office and storage space for the Book Sales Program of the Austin Public 
Library, located at 5335 Burnet Road, in an amount not to exceed $1,151,643. 

 
a. QUESTION: Why is this a 7 year lease? Will these move into the new 

downtown library once it is completed? COUNCIL MEMBER 
ZIMMERMAN'S OFFICE 

 
b. ANSWER: The lease renewal is for seven years to secure the Recycled Reads 

Book Store lease space on Burnet Road at a long term favorable rate in a fast 
developing area of town in which rental rates are escalating sharply.  The 
Recycled Reads Book Store will not move into the downtown library once it is 
completed.  A much smaller outlet for Recycled Reads is planned for the new 
downtown library, but it will not replace this store. 

 
c. QUESTION: 1) Does the City own any space of similar size that is currently 

available for use by the Book Sales Program? 2) What is the justification for a 
renewal lease of 84-months (7 years)? 3) Would it cost the city more or lease if 
the lease was shorter? What if the lease was longer? 4) Please provide a 
detailed breakdown of the expense categories (lease, utilities, taxes, insurance, 
etc.) associated with maintaining this location. 5) Are there any other expenses 
included in operating expenses other than taxes and insurance? 6) What other 
expenses are associated with the Book Sales Program (example FTEs)? 7) 
How much revenue comes from the selling of these old books and materials? 
Does the revenue cover the cost of the program? Where does the funding go? 
8) Why is the City Council reviewing this lease renewal only five days before 
the current lease ends? 9) What happens if this lease is not renewed and what 
costs would the city incur? COUNCIL MEMBER GALLO'S OFFICE 

 
d. ANSWER: See attachments. 

 
e. QUESTION: Can staff provide copies of the 2008 & the 2012 lease 

agreement? COUNCIL MEMBER TROXCLAIR'S OFFICE 
 

f. ANSWER: See attachment 
 



 

 

g. QUESTION: 1) What authorized the program in the first place? 2) Was a 
resolution / ordinance approved by the City Council to provide such 
authorization—and when might that have been? 3) In looking at the Austin 
Public Library's (APL) webpages, I am getting the impression that the 
storefront location first opened in 2009—am I correct? 4) When a book or 
“media” is “weeded” from the APL’s collection, is the item replaced with a 
newer version such as a revised reprinting of a particular book containing 
updated information, for example? 5) How is the decision arrived at as to 
which items are “weeded” versus those that are retained by APL? COUNCIL 
MEMBER ZIMMERMAN'S OFFICE 

 
h. ANSWER: 1) The initial book sale operation began in 2005 and was operated 

by a volunteer organization and support group for the library, The Friends of 
the Austin Public Library, on City of Austin property that had been purchased 
as the site for the new Twin Oaks Branch Library.  Once construction began 
on that site in 2007, the Director of APL, with a recommendation from the 
Law Department, transitioned the book sale function to become part of 
normal departmental operations to be overseen and operated by Library staff.  
Since that transition, funding to operate the book store, including the lease 
agreement, has been included in the department’s operating budget and has 
been approved by City Council as part of the operating budget every year. 2) 
The City Council approved the negotiation and execution of an initial lease 
agreement for a 60-month term on November 8, 2007.  The actual lease 
agreement for the current rental space was signed on March 15, 2008.  Council 
subsequently approved negotiation and execution of a 24-month lease renewal 
(current term) on August 16, 2012. 3) Yes.  The current retail storefront 
opened at the 5335 Burnet Road location on February 28, 2009. 4) Based on 
usage patterns and relevancy of the material, replacement copies or newer 
versions are purchased.  For example, a book on Total Quality Management 
may have had limited circulation over the last few years and no longer 
represents current theory or thought.  This item would not be replaced, but 
based on the knowledge of librarians who regularly research professional 
review journals, award lists and media reviews, a book on Six Sigma might be 
purchased.  If the item was weeded due to its condition and usage data 
warrants it, the item would be replaced with either the same or newer edition 
if available. 5) In order to keep collections updated and relevant, weeding is a 
necessity.  Weeding is performed by librarians who use their professional 
knowledge regarding selection/de-selection of materials and is based on 
established criteria.  Items are reviewed according to approved American 
Library Association standards to determine if they need to be removed due to 
circumstances such as damage or deteriorated condition, whether the item has 
been superseded by a new edition or by a better source on the subject, 
whether the item continues to represent factually accurate information, 
whether the item is still relevant to the need/interest of the community, and 
whether the information can be obtained from another source.  These weeded 
materials are sent to Recycled Reads to be reused, repurposed or recycled in 
an environmentally responsible way. 

 



 

 

7. Agenda Items # 11 and # 12: # 11 - Approve an ordinance vacating approximately 
4,646 square feet of an unnamed street located between South 1st Street and 
South 2nd Street (adjacent to 900 South 1st Street); approximately 5,996 square 
feet of South 2nd Street; and approximately 2,184 square feet of an alley north of 
Copeland Street, between South 1st Street and South 2nd Street, to 1ST STREET 
HIGHLANDS, LP, for the appraised value of $137,838, subject to retaining 
public utility easements, a waterline easement, relocation of utilities at the 
developer's expense, and concurrent dedication by plat of new right-of-way. 
Related to Item # 12. # 12 - Approve an ordinance vacating approximately 8,200 
square feet of the unconstructed Christopher Street right-of-way (adjacent to 1000 
South 2nd Street) to 1ST STREET HIGHLANDS, LP, for the appraised value of 
$35,274, subject to retaining public utility easements, a waterline easement, 
relocation of utilities at the developer's expense, and concurrent dedication by plat 
of new right-of-way. Related to Item # 11. 

 
a. QUESTION: 1) Is this item time sensitive or can it be sent to the Planning & 

Neighborhoods Committee for review? 2) How is the land appraised and can 
the Council get a copy of the appraisals? 3) Are there any conceptual maps or 
site plans for the proposed subdivision that can be shared with Council? 4) 
What is the recommendation from the Austin Transportation Department? 5) 
Are there any planned traffic improvements on South 1st Street in this area? Is 
there any potential traffic light at the intersection of South 1st St. and 
Copeland St.? 6) Has the Office of Real Estate Services, Austin Transportation 
Department or any other City Staff worked with the neighbors to address their 
concerns? COUNCIL MEMBER GALLO'S OFFICE 

 
b. ANSWER: 1) The applicant considers these right-of-way (ROW) vacations to 

be time-sensitive. The applicant has worked with City staff for approximately 
2 years to achieve a viable design and to clear the ROW vacation process. The 
applicant informed us in late 2014 that they have sales contracts on hold, and 
that they cannot proceed until these vacations are approved. These vacations 
were reviewed and approved by the Planning Commission on a vote of 8-0 on 
March 25, 2014, and by the Urban Transportation Commission on a 4-0-1-2 
vote (one abstention, two absent) on April 8, 2014. 2) The property is 
appraised by an independent third party appraiser. In order to protect the City 
of Austin's negotiating position we have summarized the appraisal.  The 
appraiser determined the highest and best use of two property components 
that are adjacent to the right-of-way areas to be vacated.  One component was 
located with frontage along S. 1st Street, which is a primary, four lane 
roadway, and was deemed to have an ultimate commercial development use.  
This whole property component was then valued based on comparable 
commercial sales data of similar use properties with similar characteristics as 
the subject property and adjusted to consider the differences.  From the whole 
property valuation a value on a per square foot basis was determined.  The 
value per square foot was then applied to the right-of-way area to be vacated 
with consideration given to the rights of ownership currently held by the 
adjacent property owner; the rights to be conveyed from the City to the 
property owner; and the rights to be retained by the City. The second property 



 

 

component located to the west of the commercial oriented property was 
situated with frontage along S. 2nd Street, which is a secondary, two lane 
roadway, and was deemed to have an ultimate residential development use.  
This property component was valued in a similar manner as the first 
component, except that comparable residential oriented sales data of similar 
use properties with similar characteristics as the subject and adjusted to 
consider the differences.  As in the first property component, the whole 
property was valued and a value on a per square foot basis calculated.  Then 
consideration was given to the various rights to be conveyed to the adjacent 
property owner and retained by the City. 3) The applicant submitted both a 
residential subdivision plan and a commercial site plan concurrent with their 
original application for right-of-way vacation. These plans expired in 
December 2014. The applicant recently resubmitted to the Planning and 
Development Review Department (PDRD). In addition, the applicant has 
provided staff with their latest plat exhibit, included here as Attachment B. 4) 
The Austin Transportation Department (ATD) recommended approval of the 
proposed right-of-way vacations. 5) A traffic signal at S 1st  St/Copeland St 
was previously discussed with Arterial Management staff and the previous 
Assistant Director. The signal was to be considered if the development took 
its primary access on Copeland St and the developer paid for it. However, I 
don’t believe the developer was obligated to pay for it, and no action was 
taken. We have added this intersection for consideration of a signal and 
pedestrian hybrid beacon (PHB). Either device would rank against other 
requests citywide based on documented volumes, crash history, and nearby 
street network. ATD currently has no funding for a new device, but we 
prioritize requests for future funding opportunities. No other improvements 
are planned along S 1st St in this area. 6) The Office of Real Estate Services 
(ORES) has received several objections from owners of surrounding 
properties, which are all provided as backup to this Council agenda item. Per 
standard procedure, ORES staff forwarded all objections to the applicant 
upon receipt, and advised the applicant of their responsibility to attempt to 
address the objections. By procedure, City staff diligently follow the 
provisions of City Code to determine whether Code regulations will allow for 
approval or denial of a vacation application, including seeking review and 
approval from City stakeholder departments. However, many if not most 
citizen objections received do not fall under matters of City regulation, and 
may be an objection to other aspects of the project rather than the vacation in 
particular. In these circumstances, staff may not be able or qualified to address 
noted concerns. Thus ORES advises the applicant to attempt to address these 
objections directly with the community, and afterwards shall defer to City 
Council to consider the feasibility and merit of resolving any remaining 
objections within their overall consideration of the agenda item. 

 
c. QUESTION: Are there foreseen connectivity issues associated with the 

vacation of the “unnamed road” hereby referred to as the extension of South 
2nd Street, particularly given its intersection with the thoroughfare at South 1st 
Street? COUNCIL MEMBER TROXCLAIR'S OFFICE 

 



 

 

d. ANSWER: The vacation of this portion of right-of-way would remove any 
potential access point at this intersection. The extension of S. 2nd Street to S. 
1st Street is currently considered a “substandard road” and due to its current 
design and its adjacency to a nearby condominium complex driveway, it will 
be difficult to improve under existing City Code. 

 
8. Agenda Item # 13: Authorize negotiation and execution of an encroachment 

agreement with SHOAL CREEK WALK, LTD. for the aerial encroachment of 
the Bowie Street right-of-way by a pedestrian bridge, located between West 5th 
Street and West 6th Street. 

 
a. QUESTION: 1) Is this item time sensitive or can it be sent to the Planning & 

Neighborhoods Committee for review? 2) Is there already a developer for the 
land on the east side of Bowie Street and has a site plan been submitted that 
the Council can review? COUNCIL MEMBER GALLO'S OFFICE 

 
b. ANSWER: 1) The applicant indicated that this item is time-sensitive and that 

construction is scheduled to commence in April 2015. The pedestrian bridge 
was one mitigating criterion to secure a floodplain variance for the applicant’s 
site plan. Thus an encroachment agreement is required to be approved before 
a building permit will be issued. This encroachment was reviewed and 
approved by the Planning Commission on a 7-0-1 vote on February 24, 2015. 
2) Yes, a developer for the land on the east side of Bowie Street has submitted 
a site plan. The developer has provided staff with a PowerPoint including 
exhibits of the project plans, previously presented to the Land Use 
Commission and included as Attachment C. 

 
9. Agenda Item # 14 - Approve a resolution concerning naming the Onion Creek 

Greenbelt, located at 7004 Onion Creek Drive. 
 

a. QUESTION: If the Council decides to rename the greenbelt, what would be 
the associated costs? COUNCIL MEMBER GALLO'S OFFICE 

 
b. ANSWER: If Council decides to rename the greenbelt, all trailhead signs must 

be replaced. Without conducting a formal field survey, PARD estimates that 
there are 5 signs that would  require replacement at $1200 apiece, for a total of 
$6,000. 

 
10. Agenda Item # 15 - Approve an ordinance amending Ordinance No. 20141120-

056 to extend the expiration date for amendments to City Code Chapter 9-2 
relating to requirements for non-peak hour concrete installation within portions 
of the Central Business District (CBD) and Public (P) zoning districts. 

 
a. QUESTION: What happens if the ordinance expires? COUNCIL MEMBER 

GALLO'S OFFICE 
 

b. ANSWER: See attachment. 
 



 

 

11. Agenda Item # 16 - Authorize negotiation and execution of an interlocal 
agreement with the Texas Department of Transportation (TXDOT) for 
relocation of water, wastewater and reclaimed water lines within the TXDOT 
Roadway Improvement of State Highway 71 from east of US 183 to Onion 
Creek- Toll Road Project, in the amount of $5,200,000 plus a $520,000 
contingency, for a total contract amount not to exceed $5,720,000. 

 
a. QUESTION: 1) What was the Water Waste Water Commission vote. 2) What 

role financially is TxDOT playing in this oversight within the State’s Contract 
Roadway Improvement project? 3) Was this relocation part of a prior 
agreement with TxDOT for SH71? 4) What is the long-term need for this 
project? COUNCIL MEMBER GALLO'S OFFICE 

 
b. ANSWER: 1) On March 11, 2015, this item was unanimously approved by the 

Water and Wastewater Commission. 2) TXDOT awarded and is managing the 
Roadway Improvement contract with McCarthy, Design-Build Contractor, 
and is responsible for oversight of the contractor.  The utility relocation work 
is included in the TXDOT contract.  Per the interlocal agreement, the City will 
pay for 50% of the construction cost to relocate the existing City facilities, and 
100%of the betterment costs. 3) There was no prior agreement with TX DOT 
on this section of SH 71. 4) The improvement is needed to meet fire code 
requirements and customer needs in the area. 

 
12. Agenda Item # 18 - Authorize award and execution of a 24-month contract with 

UCS FACILITY SERVICES to provide maintenance and custodial services for 
Austin Water in an amount not to exceed $1,245,648, with two 12-month 
extension options in an amount not to exceed $622,824 per extension option, for 
a total contract amount not to exceed $2,491,296. 

 
a. QUESTION: What would the costs be to bring these services in house? As 

noted in the backup,  "The services have been performed by a contracted 
vendor for over 10 years.." COUNCIL MEMBER GALLO'S OFFICE 

 
b. ANSWER: In the past, AWU have analyzed contracting services versus hiring 

city employees to perform these services and have found contracting services 
is most cost effective.  AWU would require at least 56 internal employees to 
address maintenance and custodial services, with a mixture of full and part 
time positions.  The cost of labor alone based on the need for 56 City of 
Austin employees would be $1,138,009.60 per year.  This City of Austin labor 
estimate assumes pay rates higher than the living wage minimum of 
$11.39/hour and higher staffing levels required to accommodate for planned 
or unplanned sick and vacation time.  This labor analysis does not include 
insurance, benefits package, equipment, or cleaning supplies.  The contractor 
can do this for $622,824 per year, approximately half of what it would cost the 
City for labor alone. The contract requirements also include provisions for the 
contractor to provide general maintenance and repair services as well as 
janitorial services. The contractor also has resources outside of this contract 
(i.e. other state & municipal contracts) to reallocate staff in order to 



 

 

accommodate for planned or unplanned sick & vacation time. The contractors 
have extensive equipment inventories and can manage a variety of 
maintenance and custodial requirements and projects for multiple buildings. 
Finally, the contract includes the necessary supervisory staff. The findings of 
the labor analysis above are consistent with the findings of the 2012 
Insourcing Select Service Contracts report from Resolution 20120405-054 
directing City staff to gather data and explain the rationale for utilizing a 
contractor to perform various non-professional services.  That report 
reviewed 54 contracts, looking at operating costs for five years, cost of capital 
equipment, full-time equivalents required, contract costs for five years, and 
ultimately, the difference between the City and the contract in additional costs 
or savings over the five year period.  Only one contract at that time was 
recommended for insourcing. 

 
c. QUESTION: Does UCS Facility Services provide health insurance coverage 

for their workers who provide services to the City of Austin?  What is the 
status of those workers?  Are they contract, temporary, part-time, or 
permanent with UCS? COUNCIL MEMBER KITCHEN'S OFFICE 

 
d. ANSWER: There was no specific benefits terminology placed in the 

solicitation outside of the “living wage” terminology.   According to UCS, 
their full-time employees are offered a benefits package which includes health, 
dental & vision and a retirement package.  UCS part-time employees are not 
offered any insurance however they are offered membership in the retirement 
package.  The employees that UCS will use for the multiple AW facilities will 
be both full-time and part-time permanent employees. 

 
e. QUESTION: 1) When the last evaluation of providing AWU custodial 

services in house was evaluated, what were the findings? Was this option 
pursued further? Why or why not? 2) How many of the contractor’s custodial 
employees at Austin Water are/will be classified as full time (receiving 
benefits) and how many are classified as part time that would not receive 
benefits? 3) What are the distinctions between various classes (FT, PT, temp, 
i.e., how many hours worked per week, after how many hours worked is 
employee vested in health plan, etc.).  4) There is a 21.6% increase in the 
proposed contract from the previous contract awarded in 2013, what is the 
justification for the increase? 5) Can you please provide additional information 
about wages provided for those who would be employed by this contractor for 
full-time and part-time employees? 6) I would like to have a copy of this 
potential contract, as well as our previous contract, and information regarding 
if there are any employee benefits being provided in the new contract that 
were not available in the old contract. 

 
f. ANSWER: 1) It was estimated that it would require 50 full time employees to 

do the same amount of work.  This means a total annual cost of $1,184,560 for 
wages alone. No, this option was not pursued further. Full time employees 
would cost the City an additional $561,736 in wages per year, not including 
benefits. 2) It is estimated that the Contractor will require five full time 



 

 

employees, 27 part time employees and 23 weekend workers to fill the contract 
requirements. 3) According to the Contractor, their full time employees work 
40 hours a week and their part time employees work 20 – 30 hours a week. 
Although the Contract does not include any requirements concerning 
Contractor employee benefits, according to the Contractor full time employees 
are offered health, vision and dental insurance along with a 401K retirement 
package after a 90 day probation period.  Part time employees are only eligible 
to participate in the 401K retirement package after a 90 day probation period.  
Roughly 80% of their employees are full time and they promote from within. 
4) When attempting to extend the existing Contract awarded in 2013, the 
Contractor requested an increase in excess of 25% of the original Contract’s 
price.  In lieu of absorbing this increase Purchasing determined it to be more 
advantageous for the City to go back out to the market and seek new 
competition.  The 21% increase in the proposed Contract reflects the most 
favorably priced option available to the City. 5) According to the Contractor, 
none of their employees working under the proposed Contract will be paid less 
than $11.39 per hour, regardless of the hours they work on the job. 6) The 
current Contract is available in EDIMS.  Purchasing is glad to assist Council 
Members or their staff in retrieving any Contracts from EDIMS.  The 
proposed Contract is still being developed so there is no completed document 
available at this time other than the Contractor’s proposal.  If the Council 
Member wishes to review the proposal Purchasing can provide Council 
Members with a Non-Disclosure Agreement for their signature – afterwards 
we’re glad to provide any proposals received in response to this solicitation. 
Further, no additional benefits are being provided under the proposed 
Contract that was not available in the old contract. 

 
13. Agenda Item # 21 - Authorize award and execution of a contract with OSBURN 

MATERIALS, INC. to provide grass seed mix for the Jimmy Clay Golf Course 
in an amount not to exceed $400,265. 

 
a. QUESTION: Why the delay in rebuilding post floods? Where there FEMA 

dollars available for this project? COUNCIL MEMBER GALLO'S OFFICE 
 

b. ANSWER: We have received approval by FEMA to cover seven of the 
damaged greens at 75% of the cost of repair. The course has continued to 
struggle over the past several years with nematode damage. The decline in 
course conditions has resulted in a significant decline in play and revenue to 
the course. The remainder of the construction to improve the greens is being 
funded through certificates of obligation, which are typically funded through 
the formal budget process. The funding of the project took place in 
September 2014 when Council approved the FY 2014-15 Budget. The 
construction also needs to follow the grass planting window. The course 
closed three months prior to installing the greens mix to prepare the area for 
planting. Planting the new grass should be done between May and September 
to allow for the best possible grow-in. 

 
14. Agenda Item # 23 - Authorize award and execution of two 36-month contracts 



 

 

with VIDTRONIX TICKET & LABEL LLC and OMNIDATA SERVICES 
GROUP LLC for the purchase of as-needed replacement parts for the shared-
use passenger processing system at the Austin-Bergstrom International Airport in 
an amount not to exceed $450,000 each and combined, with two 12-month 
extension options in an amount not to exceed $150,000 each and combined per 
extension option, for a total contract amount not to exceed $750,000 each and 
combined. 

 
a. QUESTION: 1) Is this item time sensitive or can it be sent to the Audit & 

Finance Committee for review? 2) Are the airlines using these shared use 
passenger processing systems being charged to use these systems and does the 
revenue cover the cost of the equipment? COUNCIL MEMBER GALLO'S 
OFFICE 

 
b. ANSWER: 1) This item is time sensitive. We have three existing airlines 

adding new service in April and two new airlines starting service in May. These 
parts are critical to the operation of the airport and those airlines. 2) Airlines 
who use the shared-use system are being charged a fee per use and a portion 
of the Information Systems O&M budget is paid for by the airlines rates & 
charges. 

 
15. Agenda Item # 24 - Authorize award and execution of a 36-month contract with 

TEXAS ELECTRIC COOPERATIVES to provide pressure treated wood poles 
for Austin Energy in an amount not to exceed $3,767,343 with three 12-month 
extension options in an amount not to exceed $1,255,781 per extension option, 
for a total contract amount not to exceed $7,534,686. 

 
a. QUESTION: 1) How many Austin Energy treated wood pole stock locations 

do we have in addition to these two? 2) How much of our total stock is kept at 
these two locations? 3) How much total stock do we have at any one time? 4) 
Do we have enough stock to make it through this year’s budget process? 
COUNCIL MEMBER TROXCLAIR'S OFFICE 

 
b. ANSWER: 1) None; St. Elmo and Kramer are the only two locations in which 

Austin Energy (AE) stores wood poles. 2) 100%; all wood poles are stored at 
these two locations. 3) As of March 23, AE has 228 wood poles at Kramer 
and 231 wood poles at St. Elmo. The total of 459 poles includes 14 variations 
of heights and classes (thickness). The height and class of a pole is based on 
many variables such as the clearance height needed to best protect trees, 
conductor size needing to be supported, straightness or curve of a line being 
built, and in line versus tangent poles, to name a few. AE has an average of 
450 wood poles in stock at any time unless preparations for a severe storm are 
underway or several large projects are being constructed. 4) No, based on the 
1,665 wood poles purchased last year, AE projects a need for approximately 
800 wood poles through the end of this fiscal year—assuming equal system 
growth and no major storms. AE has $28,499.48 remaining on the contract 
with 459 poles in stock. It is important to note that this contract was depleted 
late last year requiring an extension of the contract. That extension is nearing 



 

 

depletion due to higher usage requirements (new demand in addition to 
normal growth, maintenance, emergency material hold requirements, etc.) in 
the past six months. Even if existing stock perfectly matched (in height and 
class) upcoming needs, AE projects a deficit of approximately 300 wood 
poles. (The average price for wood poles ranges from $200-$1300 depending 
on height and class.) The deficit could be much higher than 300 poles because 
the specific height and class of wood poles needed is very difficult to predict 
until projects are defined. AE crews request new orders as needed to support 
the business and required inventory levels. AE is not contractually obligated to 
spend the money, so if demand falls off for some reason, AE is not at 
financial risk. 

 
16. Agenda Item # 25 - Authorize award and execution of a 60-month revenue 

contract with LONE STAR RIVERBOAT, INC. to provide boat excursion 
services on Lady Bird Lake for an estimated revenue amount of $150,000, with 
one 60-month extension option in an estimated amount of $150,000 for a total 
estimated revenue amount of $300,000. 

 
a. QUESTION: What provisions has Lone Star Riverboat taken to address 

permitting deficiencies relating to restroom output and water pumping on 
vehicles? COUNCIL MEMBER POOL'S OFFICE 

 
b. ANSWER: Via a letter sent to Lone Star Riverboat last week, City staff 

notified Lone Star Riverboat about the City’s requirements regarding 
recordkeeping to demonstrate compliance with the City’s marine sanitation 
requirements. In response, Lone Star Riverboat has provided records 
demonstrating that the waste from its boats has been properly pumped out. 

 
c. QUESTION: Why was this item previously pulled from a past agenda and was 

that issued resolved? COUNCIL MEMBER GALLO'S OFFICE 
 

d. ANSWER: Code (8-1-74) requires a joint recommendation of the Parks 
Board, Environmental Board and the Design Commission on the grant of a 
boating concession in Town Lake Park.  The joint recommendation has lacked 
action by the Design Commission.  The Design Commission cancelled its 
February meeting, and is scheduled to meet today, March 23, 2015.  This item 
is on the agenda for action. 

 
e. QUESTION: 1) Two of the three boats in the current Lone Star Fleet are 

Non-Compliant with City Code in regard to providing marine toilets on 
excursion boats. Will Lone Star Riverboat, Inc. replace the current Non-
Compliant boats with the expansion of “seats” and/or additional boats, or 
would the Non-Compliant boats continue to operate? 2) Will any additional 
“seats” or boats comply with City Code in regard to providing marine toilets 
on excursion boats that carry more than 20 passengers? 3) Is the current dock 
adequate for the services and fleet that will be provided over the next 5-10 
years? 4) Who owns the existing dock that serves the Lone Star Riverboats 
operation? 5) How will the services/fleet be expanded with no expansion or 



 

 

improvements to the dock? 6) What parkland would be used by Lone Star 
Riverboat for providing parking and ADA access to the existing dock? Will all 
improvements made on parkland be dedicated to the City? 7) Consider 
requiring Lone Star Riverboat to install a Boat Sewage Pumpout Station prior 
to expanding services/fleet to provide a proper on-shore disposal facility for 
excursion boats that operate on Lady Bird Lake. (There is Boat Sewage 
Pumpout grant funding available that can cover up to 75% of the cost for 
installing this equipment.) 8) Can staff explain why these concerns have not 
been addressed or why the agreement has not been amended. MAYOR PRO 
TEM TOVO'S OFFICE 

 
f. ANSWER: 1)  Lone Star Riverboats Inc. will be required to operate in 

compliance with all applicable federal, state and local laws include city code 6-
5-34.  Lone Star Riverboats Inc. operator could opt to limit excursion 
passenger loads to less than 20 per excursion/trip on the “Little Star” and 
“Southern Star”, which are not equipped with marine toilets or discontinue 
their use. Lone Star Riverboats may continue to utilize its “Lone Star” vessel 
which is compliant with 6-5-34 as it is equipped with two marine toilets. 2)  
Lone Star Riverboats Inc. proposes to upgrade its 3 vessel fleet by replacing its 
“Little Star” vessel, a 34 set capacity vessel, with a larger vessel.  The proposed 
new vessel would not be equipped with a marine toilet, therefore would be 
limited to a maximum passenger capacity of less than 20 per city’s current code 
requirement. 3) Yes, Lone Star Riverboats Inc. has no plans to increase the 
number of vessels in its fleet. 4)  Lone Star Riverboats Inc. owns the existing 
floating dock.  Lone Star Riverboats Inc. acquired and maintains the dock at its 
own expense. 5)  Lone Star Riverboats Inc. does not propose to increase the 
number of vessels. Rather, Lone Star Riverboats Inc. plans to replace “Little 
Star” capacity of 34 with a “60” seat capacity vessel that is accommodated 
within the existing dock. 6)  The current agreement does not require dedicated 
parking amenities.  Patrons of the lone Star Riverboat access parking at a 
variety of private and public lots and right of way on street parking on a first 
come first serve basis. All improvements on parkland will be owned by the 
City. 7)  The City’s Request for Proposals did not require the investment and 
installation of a boat sewage pump out station. Lone Star and other 
commercial operators currently utilize permitted waste haulers to pump out 
marine holding tanks in compliance with City code. 8) Concerns related to 
excursion boat marine toilets and related pump out requirements in Austin 
City Code Chapter 6 currently reside with Austin Water Utility.  The Austin 
Water Utility is in the process of reviewing, collecting stakeholder input and 
making recommendations for revisions to code.  Lone Star has not been cited 
with any code violation(s) to date.  In light of concerns raised, the Parks 
department will require Lone Star to submit a copy of each and every manifest 
for marine toilet pump outs on a monthly basis. 

 
17. Agenda Item # 27 - Authorize award and execution of a 43-month contract 

through the National Joint Powers Alliance with W. W. GRAINGER, INC., to 
purchase industrial supplies, equipment, tools, and services in an amount not to 
exceed $16,500,000, with one 12-month extension option in an amount not to 



 

 

exceed $4,500,000, for a total contract amount not to exceed $21,000,000. 
Related to Item # 26. 

 
a. QUESTION: Item # 27 provides for a 43 month contract for purchasing of 

various supplies for various city departments through the National Joint 
Powers Alliance with W.W. Grainger, Inc.  Please provide the terms  for the 
amount and length of time of the previous contract scheduled to expire on 
March 31, 2015.  Please provide a statement of annual purchases by 
department for the last three years. COUNCIL MEMBER KITCHEN'S 
OFFICE 

 
b. ANSWER: See attachment. 

 
18. Agenda Items # 39 - # 42 

 
a. QUESTION: Are these items time sensitive or can they be sent to the 

Planning & Neighborhood Committee for review? COUNCIL MEMBER 
GALLO'S OFFICE 

 
b. ANSWER: Items 39 and 40 refer to an Austin Water Utility Springdale/290 

Improvement Project which is time-sensitive. Any delay will impact the 
project timeline; however, staff recognizes that Council may wish to discuss 
these items further in a Council Committee.  If these two items can be 
reviewed by the appropriate Committee(s) and posted for Council 
consideration by May 7th, staff expects that impacts will be minimal enough 
to be absorbed in the projected timeline. Staff requests no delay beyond early 
May to the project schedule. The Austin Public Library (APL) considers Item 
41 time-sensitive. The current driveway/inadequately sized parking lot 
configuration at the University Hills Branch Library constitutes a public safety 
hazard that continues to worsen due to increasing vehicular traffic on Loyola 
Road and the increased demand for Library services in this growing area.  This 
parking lot expansion project has been funded for land acquisition and design 
since the summer of 2013, and while design has moved forward, land 
acquisition has not,  as the City has reached an impasse with the owner 
regarding the value of the land needed to expand the parking lot. Item 42 is 
related to an Austin Water Utility project for the Waters Park Relief Main. 
This project is time-sensitive insofar as the project cannot go to bid until this 
property has been acquired. Due to the length of the eminent domain timeline 
(which is largely due to state statutory requirements), Council approval any 
later than March 2015 would push construction bid past February 2016. It is 
staff’s opinion that this project must move forward due to the undersized 
existing wastewater main.  The project will add an additional wastewater main 
to increase capacity to the system which is currently at 80% full.  This is 
necessary due to the continuing development activity in the Walnut Creek 
area. 

 
19. Agenda Item # 41 - Approve a resolution authorizing the filing of eminent 

domain proceedings for the University Hills Branch Library Parking Lot 



 

 

Expansion Project for approximately 22,147 square feet of land for a public 
parking lot, out of Lot 1A, The Bluffs of University Hills, Resubdivision of Lots 
1 and 2, Block A, a subdivision in Travis County, Texas, according to the map or 
plat recorded in Volume 84, Page 43D, Plat Records of Travis County, Texas, 
conveyed to SAFA Trading Establishment, Inc. by Special Warranty Deed 
recorded in Volume 12932, Page 1629 of the Real Property Records of Travis 
County, Texas, in the amount of $155,000.  The owner of the needed property 
interests is SAFA TRADING ESTABLISHMENT, INC.  The property is 
located entirely in District 1, at 4601 Loyola Lane, in Austin, Travis County, 
Texas 78723.  The general route covered by this project includes the University 
Hills Branch Library area, located on a portion of Loyola Lane, between Manor 
Road and Ed Bluestein Boulevard (United States Highway 183). 

 
a. QUESTION: Included with the RCA backup is a security incident report 

regarding issues with a traffic jam in the parking lot and children jaywalking 
across the street to the library. Why are students being dropped off at this 
intersection and is some of the traffic due to parents picking up their children? 
COUNCIL MEMBER TROXCLAIR'S OFFICE 

 
b. ANSWER: The bus referred to in the Incident Report was transporting 

children to afterschool programs offered at this library. Staff do not believe 
that the mass of vehicles in the parking lot were there to pick up students 
from this bus. Buses regularly transport children from schools and day care to 
a variety of afterschool programs provided at the University Hills branch, such 
as storytime, tutoring, and special events. Austin Public Library staff expect 
attendance for these programs to increase due to the new development at 
Colony Park, to which the University Hills branch is the closest library 
providing service. 

 
20. Agenda Items # 46 - # 51 

 
a. QUESTION: Why are these zoning items on this agenda and not on the April 

9th City Council Zoning agenda? COUNCIL MEMBER GALLO'S OFFICE 
 

b. ANSWER: Based on Council direction, zoning cases already scheduled will 
proceed as planned.  The first “zoning” Council meeting will be on April 16th.  
Council cancelled the April 9th meeting due to a conflict with an open 
government symposium scheduled to occur throughout City Hall that day. 

 
END OF REPORT - ATTACHMENTS TO FOLLOW 
 

 
 

The City of Austin is committed to compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act. 
Reasonable modifications and equal access to communications will be provided upon request. 

For assistance, please call 512-974-2210 or TTY users route through 711. 
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ORDINANCE NO. ______________ 

 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CITY CODE CHAPTERS 9-2 (NOISE AND 1 

AMPLIFIED SOUND) AND 9-4 (PROHIBITED ACTIVITIES) RELATING TO 2 

AUDIBLE NOISES AND MUSIC AND SOLICITATION.   3 

 4 

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF AUSTIN: 5 

 6 
PART 1.  City Code Section 9-2-2 (Applicability) is amended to remove Subsection (B) 7 

to read as follows: 8 

§ 9-2-2 APPLICABILITY. 9 

[(A)] This chapter does not apply to: 10 

(1)  an employee of a governmental entity engaged in the employee’s official 11 

duty; 12 

(2)  an person at a stadium or ball-park during a sports event; 13 

(3)  a person at an authorized parade or street event; 14 

(4)  a person operating a bell for a religious activity; 15 

(5)  a person operating an emergency vehicle; or 16 

(6)  a person operating an audible warning device on a vehicle or train as 17 

required by state law.  18 

[(B) This article does not apply to a person issued a permit that authorizes the use 19 

of sound equipment.] 20 

PART 2.  City Code Sections 9-2-3 (General Restrictions) is amended to read as follows: 21 

§ 9-2-3 GENERAL RESTRICTIONS. 22 

 23 
(A)  A person may not: 24 

(1) use or permit the use of sound equipment that produces a sound at a 25 

business:  26 

(a) in excess of 85 decibels between 10:00 a.m. and 2:00 a.m., as 27 

measured at the property line of the business; or  28 
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(b) is plainly audible at the property line of the business between 2:00 1 

a.m. and 10:00 a.m.[the decibel limits prescribed by this chapter]; 2 

(2) use or permit the use of sound equipment that produces a sound at a 3 

residence:   4 

(a) in excess of 75 decibels at the boundary line of the residence; or   5 

(b) is plainly audible at the boundary line of the residence between 6 

10:00 p.m. and 10:00 a.m.; 7 

(3) make noise or play a musical instrument that is plainly audible from the 8 

boundary line of the nearest [to an adjacent] business or residentially 9 

occupied property: [residence]  10 

(a) between 1:00 a.m. and 7:00 a.m. in the following areas:   11 

(i) 600 to 900 blocks of Red River Street; 12 

(ii) Sixth Street District;  13 

(iii) Warehouse District; or  14 

(b) between 10:30 p.m. and 7:00 a.m. in all other areas of the City; 15 

(4) operate a machine that separates, gathers, grades, loads, or unloads sand, 16 

rock, or gravel within 600 feet of a residence, church, hospital, hotel, or 17 

motel between 7:00 p.m. and 6:00 a.m., except for the installation of 18 

concrete as authorized under Section 9-2-21[15] (Permit for Concrete 19 

Installation During Non-Peak Hour Periods); 20 

(5) use, authorize, or allow the use, of a vehicle, equipment, attachment, or 21 

device associated with a vehicle, for cold hold, refrigeration, or freezing of 22 

any consumable food or beverage product, including water in any form 23 

such as consumer ice or ice used to refrigerate food or beverage, between 24 

7:00 p.m. and 6:00 a.m. if noise or sound originating from the vehicle or 25 

any associated equipment (such as an engine or generator, equipment, 26 

attachment, trailer or device) is audible or causes vibration at a residence; 27 

(6) operate sound equipment in a vehicle that is audible or causes[ing] a 28 

vibration 30 feet from the equipment, except as authorized under Section 29 

9-2-22 (Permit for Sound Equipment on Vehicle); or 30 

(7) operate sound equipment in a watercraft that is audible or causes[ing] a 31 

vibration 100 feet from the equipment. 32 
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PART 3.  City Code Section 9-2-4 (Restriction on Decibel Level) is repealed and 1 

replaced to read as follows: 2 

§ 9-2-4 PERMIT REQUIRED. 3 

 A person may not use or permit the use of sound equipment to produce sound that 4 

is audible to the public without a permit required by this chapter.   5 

PART 4.  City Code Section 9-2-5 (Restriction on Use of Sound Equipment in a 6 

Residential Area) is repealed.   7 

PART 5.  City Code Section 9-4-13 (Solicitation Prohibited) is amended to amend 8 

Subsection (C) to read as follows: 9 

§ 9-4-13 SOLICITATION PROHIBITED. 10 

(C)  A person commits an offense if the person solicits: 11 

(1)  in an aggressive manner in a public area; 12 

(2)  in a bus, at a bus station or stop, or at a facility operated by a 13 

transportation authority for passengers; 14 

(3)  within 25 feet of: 15 

(a)  an automated teller facility; 16 

(b)  the entrance or exit of a bank; or 17 

(c)  the entrance or exit of a check cashing business; or 18 

(4)  at a marked crosswalk; 19 

(5)  on either side of the street on a block where a school attended by minors 20 

or childcare facility has an entrance or exit;  21 

(6)  at a sidewalk café authorized under Chapter 14-4 (Sidewalk Cafes) or the 22 

patio area of a bar or restaurant; [or] 23 

(7) between 1:00 am and 7:00 am in the following areas:  24 

(i)  600 to 900 blocks of Red River Street; 25 

(ii) Sixth Street District as defined in Section 9-2-1 26 

(Definitions); or 27 
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(iii) Warehouse District as defined in Section 9-2-1 1 

(Definitions); or  2 

(8) in the downtown business area described in Section 9-4-14 (Sitting or 3 

Lying Down on Public Sidewalks in the Downtown Business Area 4 

Prohibited) between 7:00 p.m. and 7:00 a.m. 5 

PART 6.  Six months after the effective date of this ordinance, the City Manager shall 6 

report to Council on any issues that result from this ordinance and that are related to 7 

blocked entrances and exits and abuses of amplified sound, and also any 8 

recommendations to address the issues.  9 

PART 7.  This ordinance takes effect on ______________, 2015. 10 

PASSED AND APPROVED 11 
 12 

       § 13 

       § 14 

______________________, 2015  § _______________________________ 15 

         Steve Adler 16 

              Mayor 17 

 18 

 19 

APPROVED: __________________  ATTEST: ________________________ 20 

        Karen M. Kennard        Jannette S. Goodall 21 

   City Attorney               City Clerk 22 



 

 

Council Question and Answer 

Related To Item # 10 Meeting Date March 26, 2015 

Additional Answer Information 
 
 

QUESTION (CM GALLO):  
Does the City own any space of similar size that is currently available for use by the Book Sales Program? 
 
ANSWER: 
The only retail space owned by the City that is both currently available and of comparable size to Recycled Reads is 
stewarded by the Austin Convention Center Department (ACCD) in the parking garage at E. 4th Street and Red River. 
The available spaces at this location are 6,240 square feet and 3,580 square feet, and can be combined. ACCD and the 
Office of Real Estate Services (ORES) are reviewing proposals for the lease of this retail space to third parties for uses 
that support the general mission of ACCD and the vitality of the neighborhood immediately surrounding the 
Convention Center, including activity in the evenings, appeal to tourists, and an attractive destination easily accessible 
from across downtown. This retail space was not considered for use by Recycled Reads for the following reasons: 

• Recycled Reads has built a recognizable and welcome presence in its current location on Burnet Road for 
seven years, and is associated with this particular location by its loyal customer base. 

• A smaller Recycled Reads store will be located in the new Central Library on W. 2nd Street, which is one mile 
from the ACCD retail space. With multiple locations (North and Central) in addition to satellites in individual 
library branches, Recycled Reads can better reach and serve a wider portion of Austin’s population. Moving 
the flagship Recycled Reads downtown will diminish that intended reach of service.  

• The ACCD retail space is totally bare and the City would need to provide funding for tenant finish-out in the 
space before Recycled Reads could move in. As a rough estimate, this finish-out cost to the City could run as 
high as $200,000. 

• The market rental rate that the City is projected to receive for the ACCD retail space is higher than the rate 
paid for the Recycled Reads location on Burnet Road, so this would not be a cost-effective decision. 

 
 
QUESTION (CM GALLO): 
What is the justification for a renewal lease of 84-months (7 years)? 
 
ANSWER: 
The lease renewal is for seven years to secure the Recycled Reads Book Store lease space on Burnet Road at a long 
term favorable rate in a fast developing area of town in which rental rates are escalating.  
 
 
QUESTION (CM GALLO): 
Would it cost the city more or less if the lease was shorter? What if the lease was longer? 
 
ANSWER: 
Securing the space for seven years at current rates, given the rapidly inclining Austin market, is a less costly approach 
than subsequently renewing a shorter lease at rates expected to be higher. The seven year term was negotiated with the 
landlord and it is expected that the landlord would not readily agree to a longer term.  
 
 
 



 

 

 

QUESTION (CM GALLO): 
Please provide a detailed breakdown of the expense categories (lease, utilities, taxes, insurance, etc.) associated with 
maintaining this location.  Are there any other expenses included in operating expenses other than taxes and 
insurance?  What other expenses are associated with the Book Sales Program (example FTEs)?   
 
ANSWER: 
Please see Attachment A (FY 14 Financial Report). 
 
 
QUESTION (CM GALLO): 
How much revenue comes from the selling of these old books and materials? Does the revenue cover the cost of the 
program? Where does the funding go? 
 
ANSWER: 
The year-to-year revenue snapshot is provided below. As shown in Attachment A (FY 14 Financial Report), program 
revenue does not cover total program costs, but revenue does cover the costs of rent, utilities, and other expenses 
besides labor. Sales revenue from Recycled Reads is deposited into the Library’s Special Revenue account. 
 

 
 
 
QUESTION (CM GALLO): 
Why is the City Council reviewing this lease renewal only five days before the current lease ends? 
 
ANSWER: 
The lease negotiation process can be a variable and often lengthy process. A rent market survey and the negotiation of 
lease terms were completed in January, with a Request for Council Action launched in February. Due to City staff’s 
efforts to delay non-urgent items from Council review until after the “deep dive” policy workshop process, this lease 
renewal was scheduled to be taken to Council in late March. 
 
 
QUESTION (CM GALLO): 
What happens if this lease is not renewed and what costs would the city incur? 
 
ANSWER: 
Should the City remain on the leased premises after the lease expiration, the lease is deemed to be extended on a day to 
day basis for the period of possession, with the parties subject to all covenants and obligations of the lease. Monthly 
rent during this holdover period shall be prorated on a daily basis. The lease does not establish any additional fee 
charged to the City for this holdover period beyond the prorated rent. However, the lease could be terminated by the 
landlord at will, or demand a higher rent rate, and the City would incur all costs associated with vacating the property 
upon lease termination. 
 



Operations General Fund Special Revenue Total of All Funds

Revenue:
Gross Sales -                                171,399.31                   171,399.31                   

Total Revenue from Operations -                                171,399.31                   171,399.31                   

Expenses:
Cost of Goods Sold -                                -                                 -                                 

Labor 229,924.49                  5,012.14                       234,936.63                   
Rent 67,233.00                    67,233.00                     134,466.00                   

Utilities 11,113.80                    -                                 11,113.80                     
Advertising -                                6,275.00                       6,275.00                       

Postage -                                2,320.74                       2,320.74                       
Office Supplies -                                1,989.52                       1,989.52                       

Fees -                                180.00                          180.00                          
Mileage 109.84                         -                                 109.84                          

Expense Refunds1 -                                (57,685.25)                    (57,685.25)                    

Total Expenses from Operations 308,381.13                  25,325.15                     333,706.28                   

Net Increase (Decrease) from Operations (308,381.13)                146,074.16                  (162,306.97)                 

Footnotes:

Austin Recycled Reads
Comprehensive Financial Results of Operations

For the Year ended September 30, 2014
Fiscal Year 2013-14

1Expense Refunds are from Austin Resource Recovery for materials diversion (a.k.a. Tonnage) of obsolete Library material as well as books and materials donated
from the public. Austin Resource Recovery has an annual financial commitment to pay Austin Recycled Reads $250 per ton of material diverted through recycling
and reuse. Background and Purpose: In addition to giving books a second chance, Austin Recycle Reads is an active participant in the City's Zero Waste Plan by
ensuring obsolete materials are handled in an environmentally responsible way by keeping these materials out of landfills. In this way, the Library contributes to a
socially responsible cause by ensuring that knowledge and learning is passed along to others in need. Books that are unusable as reading material are responsibly
recycled for reuse.



















































































EAST BLOCK – SHOAL CREEK WALK 



EXISTING FLOODPLAIN CONDITION 



PROPOSED FLOODPLAIN CONDITION 



25-7-92 – ENCROACHMENT PROHIBITED ON FLOODPLAIN 

The director may grant a variance to Subsection (A) or (B) if 
the director determines that:  

(1) the finished floor elevation of a proposed building is at 
least two feet above the 100-year floodplain;  
(2) normal access to a proposed building is by direct 
connection with an area above the regulatory flood datum, 
as prescribed by Chapter 25-12, Article 1 (Building Code);  

 







VIEW LOOKING NORTH from 5TH STREET 



VIEWS LOOKING SOUTH from 6TH STREET 







 

 

 

Council Question and Answer 

Related To Item # 15 Meeting Date March 26, 2015 

Additional Answer Information 
 
 
QUESTION:  What happens if the ordinance expires? COUNCIL MEMBER GALLO'S OFFICE 
 
ANSWER: If the current ordinance proposed to be extended expires, then the previous language that addresses 
non-peak hour for concrete pour returns.  

 
The previous ordinance allowed permits for authorizing an applicant to deliver, finish, place or pour concrete between 
the hours of 7:00 p.m. to 6:00 a.m. at property that is located within the Central Business District (CBD) zoning 
district and within 600 feet of a residence, church, hospital, hotel or motel. The previous ordinance allowed the 
issuance of a permit if the director determined it was in the interest of public health, safety or welfare or justified by 
urgent necessity. In addition, the previous ordinance required the applicant provide contact information, a description 
of the work to be performed, the amount of time needed for the permit (up to 72 hours),  and the reason why the 
work could not be performed during normal business hours.  
 
The additional requirements of the current ordinance proposed to be extended would:  

 
1) allow permits to be issued on property zoned Public (P) district zoning;  
2) require notices to be sent to adjacent property owners located next door or across the street, and 

representatives of property owners or residents within 600 feet of when the non-peak pour would occur and 
the duration of the project;  

3) require 24-hour contact information for an individual with primary responsibility for the project be provide to 
adjacent property owners located next door or across the street, and representatives of property owners or 
residents within 600 feet;  

4) provide a noise and light mitigation plan that addresses location of concrete pump location, shielding of 
lighting and actions that the director would determine to be reasonably necessary to protect the public health 
safety and welfare, and to ensure reasonable expectations of a sound environment that does not preclude sleep; 
and,  

5) require concrete pour permits associated with building permits issued on or after December 1, 2014 be limited 
to the hours of 7:00 p.m. to 2:00 a.m. the following day, and in special circumstances of limited duration from 
7:00 p.m. to 6:00 a.m.   

 



 

 

Council Question and Answer 

Related To Item # 27 Meeting Date March 26, 2015 

Additional Answer Information 
 

Question 1: Please provide the terms for the amount and length of time of the previous contract scheduled to 
expire on March 31, 2015. 

 
Answer 1:  The TCPN/Grainger contract was originally approved by Council on 12/16/2010 and setup with a 

three month initial term with funding set at $421,875 and four 12-month extensions options at 
$1,687,500/option.  The initial term and renewal options matched the terms established through the 
cooperative; initial term set to expire on 3/31/2011 with annual renewals for up to an additional four 
years.  Two additional requests for funding were approved by Council to add an additional $4,386,486 
on 4/26/2012 and an additional $2,000,000 on 4/16/2014. 

 
 
Question 2: Please provide a statement of annual purchases by department for the last three years. 
 
Answer 2: Below is the average yearly spends by department.  Note that purchases through the Credit Card 

process are often rolled into the DO (departmental purchase order) from Department 7400.  Pro Card 
purchases tend to match the 7400 DO.  

 

 

Departments Sum or Order Amount DO Average/Year Pro Card Average/Year Average/Year 
1100 $1,690,052 $422,513   $422,513 
1500 $62,214 $15,554 $81,276 $96,829 
1600 $180,974 $45,243 $25,796 $71,040 
2200 $1,330,105 $332,526 $336,573 $669,099 
2400 $142,656 $35,664 $2,362 $38,026 
6000 $20,263 $5,066 $4,100 $9,166 
6200 $1,064,769 $266,192 $6,331 $272,523 
6300 $3,875 $969 $4,965 $5,934 
6400 $14,885 $3,721 $6,659 $10,380 
7400 $7,095,230 $1,773,808 $10,251   
7500 $35,068 $8,767 $28,691 $37,458 
7800 $39,713 $9,928 $134,925 $144,853 
8100 $73,981 $18,495 $264,728 $283,223 
8200 $120,335 $30,084 $528,344 $558,428 
8300 $166,486 $41,622 $94,992 $136,614 
8500 $262,285 $65,571 $54,637 $120,208 
8600 $186,305 $46,576 $157,456 $204,033 
8700 $15,330 $3,832 $18,092 $21,925 
9100 $57,030 $14,258 $1,804 $16,062 
9200 $30,000 $7,500 $2,576 $10,076 
9300 $258,731 $64,683 $29,388 $94,071 

Grand Total $12,850,288 $3,212,572 $1,793,947 $3,212,210 

 
 



 

 

 


	AGENDA
	QUESTIONS FROM COUNCIL
	1. Agenda Item #2 - Authorize award and execution of a construction contract with RESTEK, INC. for the Ullrich Water Treatment Plant Concrete Rehabilitation Project in the amount of $424,195 plus $42,419 contingency, for a total contract amount not to exceed $466,614.
	a. QUESTION: What was the result of the Water Waste Water Commission meeting? COUNCIL MEMBER GALLO'S OFFICE
	b. ANSWER: On March 11, 2015, this item was unanimously approved by the Water and Wastewater Commission.

	2. Agenda Item #3 - Authorize negotiation and execution of a professional services agreement with the following 15 staff recommended firms or (qualified responders) to Request for Qualifications Solicitation No. CLMP171: MWM DESIGN GROUP: HALFF ASSOCIATES, INC: MCGRAY & MCGRAY LAND SURVEYORS, INC: MACIAS & ASSOCIATES, LP: SURVEYING AND MAPPING, LLC: JACOBS ENGINEERING GROUP, INC:  LANDMARK SURVEYING, LP: JONES & CARTER, INC. dba TERRA FIRMA LAND SURVEYING: MCKIM & CREEDINC.: LANDESIGN SERVICES, INC.: PAPE-DAWSON ENGINEERS, INC.: UNINTECH CONSULTING ENGINEERS INC.: COBB FENDLEY & ASSOCIATES, INC.: GORONDONA & ASSOCIATES, INC.: and HEJL, LEE & ASSOCIATES, INC. to provide surveying services for the 2015 surveying services rotation list for an estimated period of two years or until financial authorization is expended, for a total contract amount not to exceed $3,000,000 divided  amongst the 15 firms.
	a. QUESTION: 1) Are these professional services agreements time sensitive or can this item be sent to the Audit & Finance Committee for review? 2) If the City were to perform these professional services in-house how many FTEs would be required, how much would it cost and would the level and quality of service be equal, greater or less than if the services were performed by outside firms? 3) If the City were to perform these professional services in-house how many FTEs would be required, how much would it cost and would the level and quality of service be equal, greater or less than if the services were performed by outside firms? 4) How routine is the recurring work that requires these professional services? COUNCIL MEMBER GALLO'S OFFICE

	b. ANSWER: 1) The approval of this agreement is time sensitive as the current rotation list has only $225,671.06 remaining in authorization. Additionally, there is a $100,000 project  that is currently being processed which will further draw down the authority available to make assignments for surveying work.  A delay in award of the contract may impact the City’s ability to make progress on our ongoing capital projects as surveying work is often on the critical path of project completion.  2) Public Works currently maintains a small surveying team of only three surveying professionals and two surveying technicians.  The issue, however, involves more than staffing.  Surveying technology has experienced rapid changes over the past several years.  While the City maintains some modern equipment to respond to small jobs and items of a time-sensitive nature, it is not practical for the City to purchase and maintain specialized equipment that requires unique calibration and maintenance.  Consequently, the role of City surveyors is migrating from data collection to data quality and data management. Additionally, surveying requests come in lulls and waves. The rotation list allows the City to make assignments as needs arise rather than putting requests in queue for a staff crew. Surveying is often on the critical path for project completion, and projects benefit from getting the surveying work accomplished quickly. Conversely, when there are lulls the City does not have staff sitting idle. The cost of equipment and the uneven workload make the use of a rotation list a better value to the City for most surveying requirements.  Additionally, opportunities for small and minority/women owned firms are created with the use of a rotation list. 3) The current agreement has been used by the Parks and Recreation Department, Austin Water Utility, Austin Energy, Transportation, Aviation, Watershed, and the Public Works Department. It is available for use by all departments. The same departments are expected to continue to use the new agreement. 4) Though each capital improvement project is unique, the need for surveying is routine.

	3. Agenda Item #4 - Authorize the use of the construction manager-at-risk method of contracting for construction of the new Parking Garage with Administration Offices Project at the Austin-Bergstrom International Airport.
	a. QUESTION: 1) What is the recommendation of the Audit & Finance Council Committee? 2) Is this construction manager-at-risk contract related to Zoning Cases C14-2014-0175A & B? 3) If this item is related to these two zoning case why is this item not being heard with the two zoning cases in April? 4) Has a firm or company already been selected as the finalist for this contract? 5) If so, when was the finalist approved? COUNCIL MEMBER GALLO'S OFFICE
	b. ANSWER: 1) Staff is presenting the item to the Audit and Finance Committee on March 25th. 2) No, the noted zoning cases are not related to our request to authorize the use of the construction manager-at-risk method. 3) The noted zoning cases are not related to the request to use the construction manager-at-risk method.  4) No firm or company has been identified for these services.  The action before Council is to authorize the use of the construction delivery method.  If Council approves the methodology, Contract Management Department and Aviation Staff will work to develop the solicitation documents and advertise the solicitation soon after.  This solicitation process will lead to City staff recommending a firm to Council for preconstruction phase services.  In addition, Contract Management Department and Aviation staff will also work on developing a separate solicitation for the architectural design services.  5) Not applicable.

	4. Agenda Item #5 - Approve an ordinance amending City Code Title 9 relating to audible noises and music and solicitation.
	a. QUESTION: Does this resolution have the support of the surrounding neighborhood association? COUNCIL MEMBER GALLO'S OFFICE
	b. ANSWER: As drafted, the ordinance amendment does not have the support of the surrounding neighborhood association. For this and other reasons, the Economic Development Department requested the item be withdrawn. We will be working with the Legal Department to schedule an executive session at an upcoming City Council meeting. From that point, we would bring the item to a Council Committee before proposing further ordinance amendments. 
	c. QUESTION: Can we get a “red line” version showing the original ordinance and the proposed changes? COUNCIL MEMBER ZIMMERMAN'S OFFICE
	d. ANSWER: The attached ordinance is the most recent version under discussion.  Please note that this is not a final draft.  Staff is requesting withdrawal of this item pending further Council consideration.  
	[Draft Busking Code Amendment (01-21-2015).pdf]


	5. Agenda Item #7 - Approve an ordinance establishing classifications and positions in the classified service of the Austin Fire Department; creating and eliminating certain positions and repealing Ordinance No. 20140908-004 relating to the Austin Fire Department classifications and positions.
	a. QUESTION: 1) Why the variation from the recently passed resolution 20140908-004? 2) Did this item go before the Public Safety Commission? If so, what was the vote? COUNCIL MEMBER GALLO'S OFFICE
	b. ANSWER: 1) When the budget was adopted in September 2014, AFD created a Division Chief position by upgrading a vacant Firefighter position. The classification ordinance was amended to reflect the change in rank of the one position. The current request for a  change to the ordinance would allow AFD to upgrade the rank of five vacant Firefighter positions to the next highest rank of Fire Specialist. It would also allow the creation of two Division Chiefs (DC). One DC comes from the upgrade of a Battalion Chief one rank below. The second DC comes from an upgrade of a vacant Firefighter position four ranks below. The purposed upgrades in rank will provide a) strategic oversight for the Wildfire and Community Outreach divisions, b) upper level management of Special Operations, Airport, and several other divisions, and c) the increased skill set associated with Fire Specialists who will work in Recruiting, Community Outreach and Medical Operations training and certification. 2) No, this did not go to the Public Safety Commission. The Fire Chief needs to retain the ability to manage operations issues associated with management span of control, enhancing supervision of programs, and placing employees with higher-level skill sets in key functions.

	6. Agenda Item #10 - Authorize negotiation and execution of an 84-month lease renewal agreement with PAJA PROPERTIES, LTD. for 7,675 square feet of retail, office and storage space for the Book Sales Program of the Austin Public Library, located at 5335 Burnet Road, in an amount not to exceed $1,151,643.
	a. QUESTION: Why is this a 7 year lease? Will these move into the new downtown library once it is completed? COUNCIL MEMBER ZIMMERMAN'S OFFICE
	b. ANSWER: The lease renewal is for seven years to secure the Recycled Reads Book Store lease space on Burnet Road at a long term favorable rate in a fast developing area of town in which rental rates are escalating sharply.  The Recycled Reads Book Store will not move into the downtown library once it is completed.  A much smaller outlet for Recycled Reads is planned for the new downtown library, but it will not replace this store.
	c. QUESTION: 1) Does the City own any space of similar size that is currently available for use by the Book Sales Program? 2) What is the justification for a renewal lease of 84-months (7 years)? 3) Would it cost the city more or lease if the lease was shorter? What if the lease was longer? 4) Please provide a detailed breakdown of the expense categories (lease, utilities, taxes, insurance, etc.) associated with maintaining this location. 5) Are there any other expenses included in operating expenses other than taxes and insurance? 6) What other expenses are associated with the Book Sales Program (example FTEs)? 7) How much revenue comes from the selling of these old books and materials? Does the revenue cover the cost of the program? Where does the funding go? 8) Why is the City Council reviewing this lease renewal only five days before the current lease ends? 9) What happens if this lease is not renewed and what costs would the city incur? COUNCIL MEMBER GALLO'S OFFICE

	d. ANSWER: See attachments.
	[032615 Council Q&A Item 10.doc]
	[Attachment A]

	e. QUESTION: Can staff provide copies of the 2008 & the 2012 lease agreement? COUNCIL MEMBER TROXCLAIR'S OFFICE
	f. ANSWER: See attachment
	[Lease Agreements- APL Book Sales Program.pdf]

	g. QUESTION: 1) What authorized the program in the first place? 2) Was a resolution / ordinance approved by the City Council to provide such authorization—and when might that have been? 3) In looking at the Austin Public Library's (APL) webpages, I am getting the impression that the storefront location first opened in 2009—am I correct? 4) When a book or “media” is “weeded” from the APL’s collection, is the item replaced with a newer version such as a revised reprinting of a particular book containing updated information, for example? 5) How is the decision arrived at as to which items are “weeded” versus those that are retained by APL? COUNCIL MEMBER ZIMMERMAN'S OFFICE
	h. ANSWER: 1) The initial book sale operation began in 2005 and was operated by a volunteer organization and support group for the library, The Friends of the Austin Public Library, on City of Austin property that had been purchased as the site for the new Twin Oaks Branch Library.  Once construction began on that site in 2007, the Director of APL, with a recommendation from the Law Department, transitioned the book sale function to become part of normal departmental operations to be overseen and operated by Library staff.  Since that transition, funding to operate the book store, including the lease agreement, has been included in the department’s operating budget and has been approved by City Council as part of the operating budget every year. 2) The City Council approved the negotiation and execution of an initial lease agreement for a 60-month term on November 8, 2007.  The actual lease agreement for the current rental space was signed on March 15, 2008.  Council subsequently approved negotiation and execution of a 24-month lease renewal (current term) on August 16, 2012. 3) Yes.  The current retail storefront opened at the 5335 Burnet Road location on February 28, 2009. 4) Based on usage patterns and relevancy of the material, replacement copies or newer versions are purchased.  For example, a book on Total Quality Management may have had limited circulation over the last few years and no longer represents current theory or thought.  This item would not be replaced, but based on the knowledge of librarians who regularly research professional review journals, award lists and media reviews, a book on Six Sigma might be purchased.  If the item was weeded due to its condition and usage data warrants it, the item would be replaced with either the same or newer edition if available. 5) In order to keep collections updated and relevant, weeding is a necessity.  Weeding is performed by librarians who use their professional knowledge regarding selection/de-selection of materials and is based on established criteria.  Items are reviewed according to approved American Library Association standards to determine if they need to be removed due to circumstances such as damage or deteriorated condition, whether the item has been superseded by a new edition or by a better source on the subject, whether the item continues to represent factually accurate information, whether the item is still relevant to the need/interest of the community, and whether the information can be obtained from another source.  These weeded materials are sent to Recycled Reads to be reused, repurposed or recycled in an environmentally responsible way.

	7. Agenda Items #11 and #12: #11 - Approve an ordinance vacating approximately 4,646 square feet of an unnamed street located between South 1st Street and South 2nd Street (adjacent to 900 South 1st Street); approximately 5,996 square feet of South 2nd Street; and approximately 2,184 square feet of an alley north of Copeland Street, between South 1st Street and South 2nd Street, to 1ST STREET HIGHLANDS, LP, for the appraised value of $137,838, subject to retaining public utility easements, a waterline easement, relocation of utilities at the developer's expense, and concurrent dedication by plat of new right-of-way. Related to Item #12. #12 - Approve an ordinance vacating approximately 8,200 square feet of the unconstructed Christopher Street right-of-way (adjacent to 1000 South 2nd Street) to 1ST STREET HIGHLANDS, LP, for the appraised value of $35,274, subject to retaining public utility easements, a waterline easement, relocation of utilities at the developer's expense, and concurrent dedication by plat of new right-of-way. Related to Item #11.
	a. QUESTION: 1) Is this item time sensitive or can it be sent to the Planning & Neighborhoods Committee for review? 2) How is the land appraised and can the Council get a copy of the appraisals? 3) Are there any conceptual maps or site plans for the proposed subdivision that can be shared with Council? 4) What is the recommendation from the Austin Transportation Department? 5) Are there any planned traffic improvements on South 1st Street in this area? Is there any potential traffic light at the intersection of South 1st St. and Copeland St.? 6) Has the Office of Real Estate Services, Austin Transportation Department or any other City Staff worked with the neighbors to address their concerns? COUNCIL MEMBER GALLO'S OFFICE

	b. ANSWER: 1) The applicant considers these right-of-way (ROW) vacations to be time-sensitive. The applicant has worked with City staff for approximately 2 years to achieve a viable design and to clear the ROW vacation process. The applicant informed us in late 2014 that they have sales contracts on hold, and that they cannot proceed until these vacations are approved. These vacations were reviewed and approved by the Planning Commission on a vote of 8-0 on March 25, 2014, and by the Urban Transportation Commission on a 4-0-1-2 vote (one abstention, two absent) on April 8, 2014. 2) The property is appraised by an independent third party appraiser. In order to protect the City of Austin's negotiating position we have summarized the appraisal.  The appraiser determined the highest and best use of two property components that are adjacent to the right-of-way areas to be vacated.  One component was located with frontage along S. 1st Street, which is a primary, four lane roadway, and was deemed to have an ultimate commercial development use.  This whole property component was then valued based on comparable commercial sales data of similar use properties with similar characteristics as the subject property and adjusted to consider the differences.  From the whole property valuation a value on a per square foot basis was determined.  The value per square foot was then applied to the right-of-way area to be vacated with consideration given to the rights of ownership currently held by the adjacent property owner; the rights to be conveyed from the City to the property owner; and the rights to be retained by the City. The second property component located to the west of the commercial oriented property was situated with frontage along S. 2nd Street, which is a secondary, two lane roadway, and was deemed to have an ultimate residential development use.  This property component was valued in a similar manner as the first component, except that comparable residential oriented sales data of similar use properties with similar characteristics as the subject and adjusted to consider the differences.  As in the first property component, the whole property was valued and a value on a per square foot basis calculated.  Then consideration was given to the various rights to be conveyed to the adjacent property owner and retained by the City. 3) The applicant submitted both a residential subdivision plan and a commercial site plan concurrent with their original application for right-of-way vacation. These plans expired in December 2014. The applicant recently resubmitted to the Planning and Development Review Department (PDRD). In addition, the applicant has provided staff with their latest plat exhibit, included here as Attachment B. 4) The Austin Transportation Department (ATD) recommended approval of the proposed right-of-way vacations. 5) A traffic signal at S 1st  St/Copeland St was previously discussed with Arterial Management staff and the previous Assistant Director. The signal was to be considered if the development took its primary access on Copeland St and the developer paid for it. However, I don’t believe the developer was obligated to pay for it, and no action was taken. We have added this intersection for consideration of a signal and pedestrian hybrid beacon (PHB). Either device would rank against other requests citywide based on documented volumes, crash history, and nearby street network. ATD currently has no funding for a new device, but we prioritize requests for future funding opportunities. No other improvements are planned along S 1st St in this area. 6) The Office of Real Estate Services (ORES) has received several objections from owners of surrounding properties, which are all provided as backup to this Council agenda item. Per standard procedure, ORES staff forwarded all objections to the applicant upon receipt, and advised the applicant of their responsibility to attempt to address the objections. By procedure, City staff diligently follow the provisions of City Code to determine whether Code regulations will allow for approval or denial of a vacation application, including seeking review and approval from City stakeholder departments. However, many if not most citizen objections received do not fall under matters of City regulation, and may be an objection to other aspects of the project rather than the vacation in particular. In these circumstances, staff may not be able or qualified to address noted concerns. Thus ORES advises the applicant to attempt to address these objections directly with the community, and afterwards shall defer to City Council to consider the feasibility and merit of resolving any remaining objections within their overall consideration of the agenda item.
	[Attachment B]

	c. QUESTION: Are there foreseen connectivity issues associated with the vacation of the “unnamed road” hereby referred to as the extension of South 2nd Street, particularly given its intersection with the thoroughfare at South 1st Street? COUNCIL MEMBER TROXCLAIR'S OFFICE
	d. ANSWER: The vacation of this portion of right-of-way would remove any potential access point at this intersection. The extension of S. 2nd Street to S. 1st Street is currently considered a “substandard road” and due to its current design and its adjacency to a nearby condominium complex driveway, it will be difficult to improve under existing City Code. 

	8. Agenda Item #13: Authorize negotiation and execution of an encroachment agreement with SHOAL CREEK WALK, LTD. for the aerial encroachment of the Bowie Street right-of-way by a pedestrian bridge, located between West 5th Street and West 6th Street.
	a. QUESTION: 1) Is this item time sensitive or can it be sent to the Planning & Neighborhoods Committee for review? 2) Is there already a developer for the land on the east side of Bowie Street and has a site plan been submitted that the Council can review? COUNCIL MEMBER GALLO'S OFFICE
	b. ANSWER: 1) The applicant indicated that this item is time-sensitive and that construction is scheduled to commence in April 2015. The pedestrian bridge was one mitigating criterion to secure a floodplain variance for the applicant’s site plan. Thus an encroachment agreement is required to be approved before a building permit will be issued. This encroachment was reviewed and approved by the Planning Commission on a 7-0-1 vote on February 24, 2015. 2) Yes, a developer for the land on the east side of Bowie Street has submitted a site plan. The developer has provided staff with a PowerPoint including exhibits of the project plans, previously presented to the Land Use Commission and included as Attachment C. 
	[Attachment C (Skybridge Presentation).pdf]


	9. Agenda Item #14 - Approve a resolution concerning naming the Onion Creek Greenbelt, located at 7004 Onion Creek Drive.
	a. QUESTION: If the Council decides to rename the greenbelt, what would be the associated costs? COUNCIL MEMBER GALLO'S OFFICE
	b. ANSWER: If Council decides to rename the greenbelt, all trailhead signs must be replaced. Without conducting a formal field survey, PARD estimates that there are 5 signs that would  require replacement at $1200 apiece, for a total of $6,000.

	10. Agenda Item #15 - Approve an ordinance amending Ordinance No. 20141120-056 to extend the expiration date for amendments to City Code Chapter 9-2 relating to requirements for non-peak hour concrete installation within portions of the Central Business District (CBD) and Public (P) zoning districts.
	a. QUESTION: What happens if the ordinance expires? COUNCIL MEMBER GALLO'S OFFICE
	b. ANSWER: See attachment.
	[032615 Council Q&A Item 15.doc]


	11. Agenda Item #16 - Authorize negotiation and execution of an interlocal agreement with the Texas Department of Transportation (TXDOT) for relocation of water, wastewater and reclaimed water lines within the TXDOT Roadway Improvement of State Highway 71 from east of US 183 to Onion Creek- Toll Road Project, in the amount of $5,200,000 plus a $520,000 contingency, for a total contract amount not to exceed $5,720,000.
	a. QUESTION: 1) What was the Water Waste Water Commission vote. 2) What role financially is TxDOT playing in this oversight within the State’s Contract Roadway Improvement project? 3) Was this relocation part of a prior agreement with TxDOT for SH71? 4) What is the long-term need for this project? COUNCIL MEMBER GALLO'S OFFICE
	b. ANSWER: 1) On March 11, 2015, this item was unanimously approved by the Water and Wastewater Commission. 2) TXDOT awarded and is managing the Roadway Improvement contract with McCarthy, Design-Build Contractor, and is responsible for oversight of the contractor.  The utility relocation work is included in the TXDOT contract.  Per the interlocal agreement, the City will pay for 50% of the construction cost to relocate the existing City facilities, and 100%of the betterment costs. 3) There was no prior agreement with TX DOT on this section of SH 71. 4) The improvement is needed to meet fire code requirements and customer needs in the area.

	12. Agenda Item #18 - Authorize award and execution of a 24-month contract with UCS FACILITY SERVICES to provide maintenance and custodial services for Austin Water in an amount not to exceed $1,245,648, with two 12-month extension options in an amount not to exceed $622,824 per extension option, for a total contract amount not to exceed $2,491,296.
	a. QUESTION: What would the costs be to bring these services in house? As noted in the backup,  "The services have been performed by a contracted vendor for over 10 years.." COUNCIL MEMBER GALLO'S OFFICE
	b. ANSWER: In the past, AWU have analyzed contracting services versus hiring city employees to perform these services and have found contracting services is most cost effective.  AWU would require at least 56 internal employees to address maintenance and custodial services, with a mixture of full and part time positions.  The cost of labor alone based on the need for 56 City of Austin employees would be $1,138,009.60 per year.  This City of Austin labor estimate assumes pay rates higher than the living wage minimum of $11.39/hour and higher staffing levels required to accommodate for planned or unplanned sick and vacation time.  This labor analysis does not include insurance, benefits package, equipment, or cleaning supplies.  The contractor can do this for $622,824 per year, approximately half of what it would cost the City for labor alone. The contract requirements also include provisions for the contractor to provide general maintenance and repair services as well as janitorial services. The contractor also has resources outside of this contract (i.e. other state & municipal contracts) to reallocate staff in order to accommodate for planned or unplanned sick & vacation time. The contractors have extensive equipment inventories and can manage a variety of maintenance and custodial requirements and projects for multiple buildings. Finally, the contract includes the necessary supervisory staff. The findings of the labor analysis above are consistent with the findings of the 2012 Insourcing Select Service Contracts report from Resolution 20120405-054 directing City staff to gather data and explain the rationale for utilizing a contractor to perform various non-professional services.  That report reviewed 54 contracts, looking at operating costs for five years, cost of capital equipment, full-time equivalents required, contract costs for five years, and ultimately, the difference between the City and the contract in additional costs or savings over the five year period.  Only one contract at that time was recommended for insourcing. 
	c. QUESTION: Does UCS Facility Services provide health insurance coverage for their workers who provide services to the City of Austin?  What is the status of those workers?  Are they contract, temporary, part-time, or permanent with UCS? COUNCIL MEMBER KITCHEN'S OFFICE
	d. ANSWER: There was no specific benefits terminology placed in the solicitation outside of the “living wage” terminology.   According to UCS, their full-time employees are offered a benefits package which includes health, dental & vision and a retirement package.  UCS part-time employees are not offered any insurance however they are offered membership in the retirement package.  The employees that UCS will use for the multiple AW facilities will be both full-time and part-time permanent employees.
	e. QUESTION: 1) When the last evaluation of providing AWU custodial services in house was evaluated, what were the findings? Was this option pursued further? Why or why not? 2) How many of the contractor’s custodial employees at Austin Water are/will be classified as full time (receiving benefits) and how many are classified as part time that would not receive benefits? 3) What are the distinctions between various classes (FT, PT, temp, i.e., how many hours worked per week, after how many hours worked is employee vested in health plan, etc.).  4) There is a 21.6% increase in the proposed contract from the previous contract awarded in 2013, what is the justification for the increase? 5) Can you please provide additional information about wages provided for those who would be employed by this contractor for full-time and part-time employees? 6) I would like to have a copy of this potential contract, as well as our previous contract, and information regarding if there are any employee benefits being provided in the new contract that were not available in the old contract. 
	f. ANSWER: 1) It was estimated that it would require 50 full time employees to do the same amount of work.  This means a total annual cost of $1,184,560 for wages alone. No, this option was not pursued further. Full time employees would cost the City an additional $561,736 in wages per year, not including benefits. 2) It is estimated that the Contractor will require five full time employees, 27 part time employees and 23 weekend workers to fill the contract requirements. 3) According to the Contractor, their full time employees work 40 hours a week and their part time employees work 20 – 30 hours a week. Although the Contract does not include any requirements concerning Contractor employee benefits, according to the Contractor full time employees are offered health, vision and dental insurance along with a 401K retirement package after a 90 day probation period.  Part time employees are only eligible to participate in the 401K retirement package after a 90 day probation period.  Roughly 80% of their employees are full time and they promote from within. 4) When attempting to extend the existing Contract awarded in 2013, the Contractor requested an increase in excess of 25% of the original Contract’s price.  In lieu of absorbing this increase Purchasing determined it to be more advantageous for the City to go back out to the market and seek new competition.  The 21% increase in the proposed Contract reflects the most favorably priced option available to the City. 5) According to the Contractor, none of their employees working under the proposed Contract will be paid less than $11.39 per hour, regardless of the hours they work on the job. 6) The current Contract is available in EDIMS.  Purchasing is glad to assist Council Members or their staff in retrieving any Contracts from EDIMS.  The proposed Contract is still being developed so there is no completed document available at this time other than the Contractor’s proposal.  If the Council Member wishes to review the proposal Purchasing can provide Council Members with a Non-Disclosure Agreement for their signature – afterwards we’re glad to provide any proposals received in response to this solicitation. Further, no additional benefits are being provided under the proposed Contract that was not available in the old contract.

	13. Agenda Item #21 - Authorize award and execution of a contract with OSBURN MATERIALS, INC. to provide grass seed mix for the Jimmy Clay Golf Course in an amount not to exceed $400,265.
	a. QUESTION: Why the delay in rebuilding post floods? Where there FEMA dollars available for this project? COUNCIL MEMBER GALLO'S OFFICE
	b. ANSWER: We have received approval by FEMA to cover seven of the damaged greens at 75% of the cost of repair. The course has continued to struggle over the past several years with nematode damage. The decline in course conditions has resulted in a significant decline in play and revenue to the course. The remainder of the construction to improve the greens is being funded through certificates of obligation, which are typically funded through the formal budget process. The funding of the project took place in September 2014 when Council approved the FY 2014-15 Budget. The construction also needs to follow the grass planting window. The course closed three months prior to installing the greens mix to prepare the area for planting. Planting the new grass should be done between May and September to allow for the best possible grow-in.

	14. Agenda Item #23 - Authorize award and execution of two 36-month contracts with VIDTRONIX TICKET & LABEL LLC and OMNIDATA SERVICES GROUP LLC for the purchase of as-needed replacement parts for the shared-use passenger processing system at the Austin-Bergstrom International Airport in an amount not to exceed $450,000 each and combined, with two 12-month extension options in an amount not to exceed $150,000 each and combined per extension option, for a total contract amount not to exceed $750,000 each and combined.
	a. QUESTION: 1) Is this item time sensitive or can it be sent to the Audit & Finance Committee for review? 2) Are the airlines using these shared use passenger processing systems being charged to use these systems and does the revenue cover the cost of the equipment? COUNCIL MEMBER GALLO'S OFFICE
	b. ANSWER: 1) This item is time sensitive. We have three existing airlines adding new service in April and two new airlines starting service in May. These parts are critical to the operation of the airport and those airlines. 2) Airlines who use the shared-use system are being charged a fee per use and a portion of the Information Systems O&M budget is paid for by the airlines rates & charges.

	15. Agenda Item #24 - Authorize award and execution of a 36-month contract with TEXAS ELECTRIC COOPERATIVES to provide pressure treated wood poles for Austin Energy in an amount not to exceed $3,767,343 with three 12-month extension options in an amount not to exceed $1,255,781 per extension option, for a total contract amount not to exceed $7,534,686.
	a. QUESTION: 1) How many Austin Energy treated wood pole stock locations do we have in addition to these two? 2) How much of our total stock is kept at these two locations? 3) How much total stock do we have at any one time? 4) Do we have enough stock to make it through this year’s budget process? COUNCIL MEMBER TROXCLAIR'S OFFICE
	b. ANSWER: 1) None; St. Elmo and Kramer are the only two locations in which Austin Energy (AE) stores wood poles. 2) 100%; all wood poles are stored at these two locations. 3) As of March 23, AE has 228 wood poles at Kramer and 231 wood poles at St. Elmo. The total of 459 poles includes 14 variations of heights and classes (thickness). The height and class of a pole is based on many variables such as the clearance height needed to best protect trees, conductor size needing to be supported, straightness or curve of a line being built, and in line versus tangent poles, to name a few. AE has an average of 450 wood poles in stock at any time unless preparations for a severe storm are underway or several large projects are being constructed. 4) No, based on the 1,665 wood poles purchased last year, AE projects a need for approximately 800 wood poles through the end of this fiscal year—assuming equal system growth and no major storms. AE has $28,499.48 remaining on the contract with 459 poles in stock. It is important to note that this contract was depleted late last year requiring an extension of the contract. That extension is nearing depletion due to higher usage requirements (new demand in addition to normal growth, maintenance, emergency material hold requirements, etc.) in the past six months. Even if existing stock perfectly matched (in height and class) upcoming needs, AE projects a deficit of approximately 300 wood poles. (The average price for wood poles ranges from $200-$1300 depending on height and class.) The deficit could be much higher than 300 poles because the specific height and class of wood poles needed is very difficult to predict until projects are defined. AE crews request new orders as needed to support the business and required inventory levels. AE is not contractually obligated to spend the money, so if demand falls off for some reason, AE is not at financial risk. 

	16. Agenda Item #25 - Authorize award and execution of a 60-month revenue contract with LONE STAR RIVERBOAT, INC. to provide boat excursion services on Lady Bird Lake for an estimated revenue amount of $150,000, with one 60-month extension option in an estimated amount of $150,000 for a total estimated revenue amount of $300,000.
	a. QUESTION: What provisions has Lone Star Riverboat taken to address permitting deficiencies relating to restroom output and water pumping on vehicles? COUNCIL MEMBER POOL'S OFFICE
	b. ANSWER: Via a letter sent to Lone Star Riverboat last week, City staff notified Lone Star Riverboat about the City’s requirements regarding recordkeeping to demonstrate compliance with the City’s marine sanitation requirements. In response, Lone Star Riverboat has provided records demonstrating that the waste from its boats has been properly pumped out.
	c. QUESTION: Why was this item previously pulled from a past agenda and was that issued resolved? COUNCIL MEMBER GALLO'S OFFICE
	d. ANSWER: Code (8-1-74) requires a joint recommendation of the Parks Board, Environmental Board and the Design Commission on the grant of a boating concession in Town Lake Park.  The joint recommendation has lacked action by the Design Commission.  The Design Commission cancelled its February meeting, and is scheduled to meet today, March 23, 2015.  This item is on the agenda for action.
	e. QUESTION: 1) Two of the three boats in the current Lone Star Fleet are Non-Compliant with City Code in regard to providing marine toilets on excursion boats. Will Lone Star Riverboat, Inc. replace the current Non-Compliant boats with the expansion of “seats” and/or additional boats, or would the Non-Compliant boats continue to operate? 2) Will any additional “seats” or boats comply with City Code in regard to providing marine toilets on excursion boats that carry more than 20 passengers? 3) Is the current dock adequate for the services and fleet that will be provided over the next 5-10 years? 4) Who owns the existing dock that serves the Lone Star Riverboats operation? 5) How will the services/fleet be expanded with no expansion or improvements to the dock? 6) What parkland would be used by Lone Star Riverboat for providing parking and ADA access to the existing dock? Will all improvements made on parkland be dedicated to the City? 7) Consider requiring Lone Star Riverboat to install a Boat Sewage Pumpout Station prior to expanding services/fleet to provide a proper on-shore disposal facility for excursion boats that operate on Lady Bird Lake. (There is Boat Sewage Pumpout grant funding available that can cover up to 75% of the cost for installing this equipment.) 8) Can staff explain why these concerns have not been addressed or why the agreement has not been amended. MAYOR PRO TEM TOVO'S OFFICE
	f. ANSWER: 1)  Lone Star Riverboats Inc. will be required to operate in compliance with all applicable federal, state and local laws include city code 6-5-34.  Lone Star Riverboats Inc. operator could opt to limit excursion passenger loads to less than 20 per excursion/trip on the “Little Star” and “Southern Star”, which are not equipped with marine toilets or discontinue their use. Lone Star Riverboats may continue to utilize its “Lone Star” vessel which is compliant with 6-5-34 as it is equipped with two marine toilets. 2)  Lone Star Riverboats Inc. proposes to upgrade its 3 vessel fleet by replacing its “Little Star” vessel, a 34 set capacity vessel, with a larger vessel.  The proposed new vessel would not be equipped with a marine toilet, therefore would be limited to a maximum passenger capacity of less than 20 per city’s current code requirement. 3) Yes, Lone Star Riverboats Inc. has no plans to increase the number of vessels in its fleet. 4)  Lone Star Riverboats Inc. owns the existing floating dock.  Lone Star Riverboats Inc. acquired and maintains the dock at its own expense. 5)  Lone Star Riverboats Inc. does not propose to increase the number of vessels. Rather, Lone Star Riverboats Inc. plans to replace “Little Star” capacity of 34 with a “60” seat capacity vessel that is accommodated within the existing dock. 6)  The current agreement does not require dedicated parking amenities.  Patrons of the lone Star Riverboat access parking at a variety of private and public lots and right of way on street parking on a first come first serve basis. All improvements on parkland will be owned by the City. 7)  The City’s Request for Proposals did not require the investment and installation of a boat sewage pump out station. Lone Star and other commercial operators currently utilize permitted waste haulers to pump out marine holding tanks in compliance with City code. 8) Concerns related to excursion boat marine toilets and related pump out requirements in Austin City Code Chapter 6 currently reside with Austin Water Utility.  The Austin Water Utility is in the process of reviewing, collecting stakeholder input and making recommendations for revisions to code.  Lone Star has not been cited with any code violation(s) to date.  In light of concerns raised, the Parks department will require Lone Star to submit a copy of each and every manifest for marine toilet pump outs on a monthly basis. 

	17. Agenda Item #27 - Authorize award and execution of a 43-month contract through the National Joint Powers Alliance with W. W. GRAINGER, INC., to purchase industrial supplies, equipment, tools, and services in an amount not to exceed $16,500,000, with one 12-month extension option in an amount not to exceed $4,500,000, for a total contract amount not to exceed $21,000,000. Related to Item #26.
	a. QUESTION: Item #27 provides for a 43 month contract for purchasing of various supplies for various city departments through the National Joint Powers Alliance with W.W. Grainger, Inc.  Please provide the terms  for the amount and length of time of the previous contract scheduled to expire on March 31, 2015.  Please provide a statement of annual purchases by department for the last three years. COUNCIL MEMBER KITCHEN'S OFFICE
	b. ANSWER: See attachment.
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	18. Agenda Items #39 - #42
	a. QUESTION: Are these items time sensitive or can they be sent to the Planning & Neighborhood Committee for review? COUNCIL MEMBER GALLO'S OFFICE
	b. ANSWER: Items 39 and 40 refer to an Austin Water Utility Springdale/290 Improvement Project which is time-sensitive. Any delay will impact the project timeline; however, staff recognizes that Council may wish to discuss these items further in a Council Committee.  If these two items can be reviewed by the appropriate Committee(s) and posted for Council consideration by May 7th, staff expects that impacts will be minimal enough to be absorbed in the projected timeline. Staff requests no delay beyond early May to the project schedule. The Austin Public Library (APL) considers Item 41 time-sensitive. The current driveway/inadequately sized parking lot configuration at the University Hills Branch Library constitutes a public safety hazard that continues to worsen due to increasing vehicular traffic on Loyola Road and the increased demand for Library services in this growing area.  This parking lot expansion project has been funded for land acquisition and design since the summer of 2013, and while design has moved forward, land acquisition has not,  as the City has reached an impasse with the owner regarding the value of the land needed to expand the parking lot. Item 42 is related to an Austin Water Utility project for the Waters Park Relief Main. This project is time-sensitive insofar as the project cannot go to bid until this property has been acquired. Due to the length of the eminent domain timeline (which is largely due to state statutory requirements), Council approval any later than March 2015 would push construction bid past February 2016. It is staff’s opinion that this project must move forward due to the undersized existing wastewater main.  The project will add an additional wastewater main to increase capacity to the system which is currently at 80% full.  This is necessary due to the continuing development activity in the Walnut Creek area.

	19. Agenda Item #41 - Approve a resolution authorizing the filing of eminent domain proceedings for the University Hills Branch Library Parking Lot Expansion Project for approximately 22,147 square feet of land for a public parking lot, out of Lot 1A, The Bluffs of University Hills, Resubdivision of Lots 1 and 2, Block A, a subdivision in Travis County, Texas, according to the map or plat recorded in Volume 84, Page 43D, Plat Records of Travis County, Texas, conveyed to SAFA Trading Establishment, Inc. by Special Warranty Deed recorded in Volume 12932, Page 1629 of the Real Property Records of Travis County, Texas, in the amount of $155,000.  The owner of the needed property interests is SAFA TRADING ESTABLISHMENT, INC.  The property is located entirely in District 1, at 4601 Loyola Lane, in Austin, Travis County, Texas 78723.  The general route covered by this project includes the University Hills Branch Library area, located on a portion of Loyola Lane, between Manor Road and Ed Bluestein Boulevard (United States Highway 183).
	a. QUESTION: Included with the RCA backup is a security incident report regarding issues with a traffic jam in the parking lot and children jaywalking across the street to the library. Why are students being dropped off at this intersection and is some of the traffic due to parents picking up their children? COUNCIL MEMBER TROXCLAIR'S OFFICE
	b. ANSWER: The bus referred to in the Incident Report was transporting children to afterschool programs offered at this library. Staff do not believe that the mass of vehicles in the parking lot were there to pick up students from this bus. Buses regularly transport children from schools and day care to a variety of afterschool programs provided at the University Hills branch, such as storytime, tutoring, and special events. Austin Public Library staff expect attendance for these programs to increase due to the new development at Colony Park, to which the University Hills branch is the closest library providing service.

	20. Agenda Items #46 - #51
	a. QUESTION: Why are these zoning items on this agenda and not on the April 9th City Council Zoning agenda? COUNCIL MEMBER GALLO'S OFFICE
	b. ANSWER: Based on Council direction, zoning cases already scheduled will proceed as planned.  The first “zoning” Council meeting will be on April 16th.  Council cancelled the April 9th meeting due to a conflict with an open government symposium scheduled to occur throughout City Hall that day.
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